



U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Inspector General

Requesting information about your complaint

Every report we receive is important, however, not every submission results in an investigation.

Once submitted, we will review your complaint for relevance and completeness. If you have identified yourself, a reviewing official may contact you for further information. It is important to note that you might not be contacted by an investigator but that does not mean your complaint is not being investigated. Due to the high volume of complaints we receive, it is not possible to contact every complainant. The Hotline will not be able to confirm receipt of your complaint or respond to any inquiries about action taken on your complaint.

You may request information about your complaint through the OIG Freedom of Information Act officer (<https://oig.hhs.gov/foia>). Remember to phrase your request in terms of a search for records pertinent to your complaint, not status. You should wait at least six months before filing such a request.

Your complaint summary

Before you submit, make sure you check your information and save or print a copy for your records.

Allegation details

Allegation type

Conflict of interest

Program

Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)

Business unit

Center For Program Integrity

Office name

Center for Program Integrity (CPI) / UPIC

Date of activity

3/26/2026

Is the activity still happening?

Yes

Grant/Contract information**Contract number**

HHSM500201600083I

Principal investigator/ Executive director

Eric M. Bischof, Project Coordinator, SafeGuard Services LLC /
Peraton

Subject information**Subject 1****Type of subject**

Business

Business/Department nameSafeGuard Services LLC / Peraton

Doing Business As (DBA)

-**Employer ID Number (EIN)**

-**National Provider ID (NPI)**

-**Address**1250 Camp Hill Bypass, Suite 200
Camp Hill, PA 17011

Business phone571 508-2367

Alternate phone

-**Website**<https://www.sgsdetect.com>

Additional identifying informationNortheastern Unified Program Integrity Contractor (NE UPIC) –
Eric Bischof, Project Coordinator

Subject 2**Type of subject**Business

Business/Department nameGainwell Technologies

Doing Business As (DBA)

-

Employer ID Number (EIN)

-

National Provider ID (NPI)

-

Address

1250 Camp Hill Bypass, Suite 100
Camp Hill, PA 17011

Business phone

800-842-8440

Alternate phone

-

Website

<https://www.gainwelltechnologies.com>

Additional identifying information

Connecticut Medicaid claims processor (interChange MMIS) –
Suite 100, same building as SafeGuard

Your narrative**Your description of events**

I am David Medeiros the founder and director of ABI Resources LLC and the whistleblower who filed the original 2023 Whistleblower Report 2024 Federal Intervention Report and 2026 Olmstead Civil Rights Complaint concerning systemic Medicaid fraud waste abuse and Olmstead violations in Connecticut Acquired Brain Injury ABI Waiver and Money Follows the Person MFP programs. Full public evidence archive is available at <https://www.david-medeiros.com>
I am reporting an appearance of organizational conflict of

interest OCI in the handling of my whistleblower complaint by the Northeastern Unified Program Integrity Contractor NE UPIC.

On March 25 2026 I received an email from Eric M. Bischof Project Coordinator SafeGuard Services LLC Peraton the official NE UPIC contractor for CMS. Mr. Bischof stated that the UPIC had been asked to review my concerns about fraud in the Connecticut Medicaid ABI Waiver program. His contact information and office address are listed in the email Suite 200 1250 Camp Hill Bypass Camp Hill PA 17011. The full email is posted on my dedicated evidence page.

The address provided by Mr. Bischof is the exact same physical building as Gainwell Technologies Suite 100 1250 Camp Hill Bypass Camp Hill PA 17011. Gainwell Technologies is the official fiscal agent and claims processor for the entire Connecticut Medical Assistance Program CMAP including the interChange Medicaid Management Information System MMIS that processes all ABI Waiver and MFP claims that are the subject of my fraud allegations. Gainwell has also sent me official CMAP E-Delivery Alerts including one dated March 26 2026 the day after Mr. Bischofs email.

I discovered this conflict on March 26 2026 when I searched the address on Google Maps and confirmed the shared building with public records and screenshots. Annotated screenshots the full Bischof email and todays Gainwell email are all posted on the dedicated page <https://www.david-medeiros.com/2026-upic-safeguard-gainwell-conflict-of-interest-evidence>

This creates a clear appearance of organizational conflict of interest because the contractor responsible for investigating fraud in Connecticut Medicaid claims is physically co-located in the same building as the company that actually processes and pays those same claims. The risk of improper influence informal data sharing or impaired objectivity is obvious and unavoidable.

This violates Federal Acquisition Regulation FAR Subpart 9.5 organizational conflicts of interest 42 CFR 455.238 Medicaid integrity contractor independence requirements and CMS Medicaid Program Integrity Manual requirements for UPIC impartiality.

Due to my Acquired Brain Injury TBI I formally request all communication in writing only and all reasonable accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act ADA.

I respectfully request that the Office of Inspector General 1. Immediately open an investigation into this apparent OCI involving SafeGuard Services LLC Peraton and Gainwell Technologies. 2. Reassign my underlying whistleblower complaint to a completely non-conflicted investigator or office. 3. Provide me with a case number and written

acknowledgment of receipt within 7 business days. 4. Review the full evidence on my public site for the original Medicaid fraud and Olmstead violations once the conflict is resolved. All supporting documentation screenshots emails and links will be attached on the next page or is already publicly available on the dedicated page above. I have also filed parallel notices with DOJ and FBI.

Thank you for protecting federal taxpayer funds and for safeguarding the integrity of the Medicaid program.

Respectfully

David Medeiros

860-942-0365

AABIWR LIVE.COM

Attached files

2026-03-25-SafeGuard-UPIC-Eric-Bischof-Response-Medeiros.pdf, 2026-03-25-SafeGuard-UPIC-Eric-Bischof-Response-Medeiros 2 .png, 2026-03-26-Gainwell-Technologies-CMAP-E-Delivery-Alert-Medeiros.pdf, 2026-03-26-SafeGuard-Gainwell-Same-Building-Proof-Medeiros.png, OSC DI-25-000379 (2).pdf, OSC DI-25-000379 (1).pdf, OSC DI-25-000379.pdf, 12.16.2024 OSC Binder1 (2).pdf, 2024-12-16-OSC-Binder-Compiled-Evidence-Medeiros.pdf, 12.07.2024 Enforce Federal and Constitutional Compliance Without Delay HHS CMS OCR OIG DOJ GAO USC FOIA ADA DSS OSC DAS OAG FOIC CGS DB.42.131.Inf. ABI Medeiros Connecticut DOGE (2).pdf, 12.19.2024 Enforce Federal and Constitutional Compliance Without Delay HHS CMS OCR OIG DOJ GAO USC FOIA ADA DSS OSC DAS OAG FOIC CGS DB.42.131.Inf. ABI Medeiros Connecticut DOGE .pdf, 2024-12-07-867-Page-Federal-Enforcement-Demand-Medeiros.pdf, 12.07.2024 Enforce Federal and Constitutional Compliance Without Delay HHS CMS OCR OIG DOJ GAO USC FOIA ADA DSS OSC DAS OAG FOIC CGS DB.42.131.Inf. ABI Medeiros Connecticut DOGE .pdf, FBI_OSC_01.09.2025_OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11252024342_11272024158_11282024737_12022024333_12 (2).pdf, FBI_OSC_01.09.2025_OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11252024342_11272024158_11282024737_12022024333_12.pdf, Medeiros_CHRO2510183_FederalEscalation_DOJ-FBI-HHS-CMS-OSC-GAO (1).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (11).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (12).pdf, 2024-12-06-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (13).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12062024939 (1).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12062024939 (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12062024939 (3).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12062024939 (4).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-

12062024939 (5).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12062024939.pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (9).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (10).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12052024838 (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12052024838 (3).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12052024838 (5).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12052024838 (4).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (5).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (4).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12022024333 (1).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12022024333 (1) (1).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12022024333 (2) (1).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12022024333 (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11282024737 (4).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (3).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11282024737 (5).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (6).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12032024933 (1).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12032024933 (2).pdf, NEW 2024-12-19-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-19-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (8).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (7).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12042024718 (3).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12042024718 (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12042024718 (4).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12042024718 (5).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11272024158 (1).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11272024158 (2).pdf, 10.20.2025 OSCFiling-MedeirosDavidDaniel-MA-11202025420.pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-112620241121 (2).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (14).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-112620241121 (3).pdf, 2024-11-25-OSC-Whistleblower-Disclosure-Medeiros (1).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11252024342 (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-11252024342 (3).pdf, 2024-11-27-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, OSC Mail - ABI RESOURCES 860 942-0365 - Outlook.pdf, 2024-11-28-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros (2).pdf, Date Wed 12.11.2024 8 34 AM OSCFiling MEDEIROS Your Office of Special Counsel Complaint Has Been Received OSC FBI DOGE .pdf, 2024-11-28-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-05-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, Date Thu 12.5.2024 3 39 PM OSCFiling MEDEIROS Your Office of Special Counsel Complaint Has Been Received OSC FBI DOGE .pdf, Date Sat 12.7.2024 9 41 AM OSCFiling MEDEIROS Your Office of Special Counsel Complaint Has Been Received OSC FBI DOGE .pdf, Date Tue 11.26.2024 6 48 PM OSCFiling MEDEIROS Your Office of Special

Counsel Complaint Has Been Received OSC FBI DOGE .pdf, 2024-12-02-OSC-Confirmation-Email-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-06-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-19-OSC-Confirmation-Email-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-03-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-04-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, 2024-12-02-OSC-Confirmation-Email-Medeiros (2).pdf, 2024-12-02-OSC-FBI-DOGE-Confirmation-Medeiros.pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12112024134 Mail - ABI RESOURCES 860 942-0365 - Outlook (2).pdf, OSCFiling-MedeirosDavid-DI-12112024134 Mail - ABI RESOURCES 860 942-0365 - Outlook.pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (3).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (2).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (4).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (5).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (7).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (6).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (8).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (9).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (10).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (11).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (13).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros (12).pdf, 2026-03-13-Olmstead-Whistleblower-Report-David-Medeiros.pdf

Evidence description

Evidence supporting this report includes the following publicly available at <https://www.david-medeiros.com> 2026-upic-safeguard-gainwell-conflict-of-interest-evidence

Annotated Google Maps satellite image dated March 26 2026 showing SafeGuard Services LLC Peraton Suite 200 and Gainwell Technologies Suite 100 in the exact same building at 1250 Camp Hill Bypass Camp Hill PA 17011 with red arrows and Eric Bischof email overlay.

Full email dated March 25 2026 from Eric M. Bischof Project Coordinator SafeGuard Services LLC Peraton confirming they are reviewing my whistleblower complaint and listing their office address as Suite 200 1250 Camp Hill Bypass Camp Hill PA 17011.

Gainwell Technologies CMAP E-Delivery Alert email dated March 26 2026 sent to my ABIRESOURCES account from ctdssmap at gainwelltechnologies.com proving Gainwell operates the entire Connecticut Medicaid claims system the same day after Eric Bischofs contact.

My complete whistleblower evidence archive at <https://tips.oig.hhs.gov/report-grant-contract-fraud/create-complaint>

www.david-medeiros.com containing the original 2023 Whistleblower Report 2026 Olmstead Civil Rights Complaint timelines matrices and forensic documentation of the underlying Medicaid fraud.

All files are permanently hosted on the dedicated public page above and can be downloaded or viewed immediately by investigators.

Your information

Your consent to disclose

No restrictions. Confidentiality and anonymity is not requested. If necessary, you may contact me for additional information and there are no restrictions on the release of my contact information.

Name

David Daniel Medeiros

Date of birth

12/30/1976

Medicare number

-

Medicaid number

-

Social Security Number (SSN)

048707441

Your contact details

Home phone

8609420365

Cell phone

-

Work phone

-

Personal email

aabiwr@live.com

Work email

aabiwr@live.com

Your home address

215 Mountain St
Willimantic, CT 06226

Your employment information

HHS employee, contractor, or grantee

No
